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	 ERC supports frontier 
research across scientific 
disciplines.

	 ERC supports individual 
researchers, not consortia.

	 Research topics are defined 
by the applicant.

	 Scientific excellence 
(the quality of the proposal 
and the credibility of the 
applicant) is the sole 
criterion.

What is ERC?
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	 It is a good idea to start with the ERC National 
Information Day (NID), where you get more general 
insight into the ERC and how it works. NID takes 
place every autumn. In adition the video recording 
of the event is available also. It will give you 
an overview of the ERC scheme and evaluation 
method and ERC project investigators will share 
their experiences with you.

	 Also read carefully the part of the ERC Work 
Programme relevant to the given grant scheme, 
as well as the Information for Applicants and also 
brochure from Technology Centre Prague (only in 
Czech).

	 You can find currently opened calls at the Funding 
and Tender portal. 

	 Inform the ERC university consultant at the 
Department of Science and Research – European 
Centre about your intention to submit a proposal. 

	 For further information, see our website  
ec.cuni.cz or official ERC website erc.europa.eu.

Where to get the information?

https://www.horizontevropa.cz/en/he-programme-structure/excellent-science/european-research-council/information/yiifnews/1569
https://www.horizontevropa.cz/en/he-programme-structure/excellent-science/european-research-council/information/yiifnews/1569
https://ec.cuni.cz/ECEN-125.html
https://ec.cuni.cz/ECEN-125.html
https://ec.cuni.cz/ECEN-125.html
https://www.horizontevropa.cz/cs/struktura-programu-he/excelentni-veda/evropska-rada-pro-vyzkum/informace/yiifnews/1516/nova-brozura-granty-evropske-rady-pro...
https://ec.europa.eu/info/funding-tenders/opportunities/portal/screen/opportunities/topic-search;callCode=null;freeTextSearchKeyword=;matchWholeText=true;typeCodes=1,0;statusCodes=31094501,31094502,31094503;programmePeriod=2021%20-%202027;programCcm2Id=43108390;programDivisionCode=43108406;focusAreaCode=null;destinationGroup=null;missionGroup=null;geographicalZonesCode=null;programmeDivisionProspect=null;startDateLte=null;startDateGte=null;crossCuttingPriorityCode=null;cpvCode=null;performanceOfDelivery=null;sortQuery=sortStatus;orderBy=asc;onlyTenders=false;topicListKey=topicSearchTablePageState
https://ec.europa.eu/info/funding-tenders/opportunities/portal/screen/opportunities/topic-search;callCode=null;freeTextSearchKeyword=;matchWholeText=true;typeCodes=1,0;statusCodes=31094501,31094502,31094503;programmePeriod=2021%20-%202027;programCcm2Id=43108390;programDivisionCode=43108406;focusAreaCode=null;destinationGroup=null;missionGroup=null;geographicalZonesCode=null;programmeDivisionProspect=null;startDateLte=null;startDateGte=null;crossCuttingPriorityCode=null;cpvCode=null;performanceOfDelivery=null;sortQuery=sortStatus;orderBy=asc;onlyTenders=false;topicListKey=topicSearchTablePageState
mailto:ec%40cuni.cz?subject=
https://ec.cuni.cz/ECEN-9.html
https://erc.europa.eu/homepage


5

Where to get the information? Choosing the scheme

	 Starting (StG): 2–7 years from PhD. (the date of 
successful defence, not the awarding) 

	 Consolidator (CoG): 7–12 years from PhD.
	 Advanced (AdG): no restriction
	 Extensions of these time slots:

	   Maternity leave (18 months per child)
	   Paternity leave
	   Long-term illness or national service
	   Clinical training
	   Natural disaster or seeking asylum.
	 Check the eligibility criteria in the current work 

programme.

The Host institution
	 The HI must be established in an EU country or 

associated country.

Myth #1:
the quality of the host institution determines  
the evaluation of the application

the evaluation of the application depends only 
on the scientific quality of the project and of the 
Principal Investigator (PI)



Preparation  
of the  
Proposal
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Structure of the proposal

Part A – online (Funding & Tender Portal)
	 General information about the project
	 Participants (information about the Host Institution 

and Principal Investigator)
	 Budget
	 Ethics & security
	 Other questions

Part B1 – must be saved into the 
portal as a PDF
  Abstract				    (1 p.)
  Extended synopsis			   (5 p.)
  CV and Track Record		  (4 p.)

Part B2 – must be saved into the 
portal as a PDF (14 p.) 
  State-of-the-art and objectives in detail
  Methodology

Annexes – must be saved into the  
portal as a PDF
  Host Institution Letter of Support
  Copy of PhD. diploma
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	 Life Sciences (9 panels)
	 Physical Sciences and Engineering (11 panels)
	 Social Sciences and Humanities (8 panels) 

The field covered by the individual panels is 
characterised by descriptors.The right choice of the 
panel is of primary importance that can affect the 
evaluation. Please check carefully the descriptors 
associated with the individual panels (see 
Information for Applicants) as well as the previously 
supported ERC projects (see Project Database on 
ERC website).

The descriptors and keywords that you specify in 
Part A are important. If chosen inappropriately, 
they can lead to reassignment of your proposal to 
another panel. They also affect the assignment of 
the evaluating panel members. 

You can also look at the list of evaluators within the 
individual panels in the past years. However, never 
contact members of the active panel! That would 
create a conflict of interest and the panel would 
have to exclude your project from the evaluation.

Choosing the evaluation panel

https://erc.europa.eu/project-statistics/project-database
https://erc.europa.eu/project-statistics/project-database
https://erc.europa.eu/apply-grant/panel-members?IPGWtPdOmn


Choosing the evaluation panel

Myth #2: 
	
	 The more descriptors (covering multiple panels) 

I state, the better because the project will seem 
multidisciplinary.

	 You should submit your project to the panel where 
the experts will best understand and appreciate an 
original, innovative approach to the topic. Therefore, 
choose the second panel only when it is required by 
the nature of the project. 
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The point is, that a potential PI must 
have a clear understanding of why  
they want to apply for the grant in 
the first place. When it comes to 
considering whether applying for 

a grant is worth it or not, my answer is always  
„Do or do not. There is no try.“ 

Jana Kalbáčová Vejpravová (ERC StG)



Preparation 
of the 
Proposal – 
Part B1
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Part B1

Part B1 consists of an abstract, extended synopsis, 
CV and track record of the PI.

The abstract is essential. It represents the whole 
proposal, and it is carefully read by each person 
involved in the evaluation. It should describe the 
grant proposal in a nutshell, not mainly the state of 
the art in the field. 

	 The following questions must in principle be 
answered: WHAT is the main selling point? WHY is 
the addressed problem important? HOW will the 
problem be approached? Originality and novelty 
must be clear.

The extended synopsis is an invitation to read Part 
B2, which is not available to the panel in the first 
round of the evaluation. It must trigger curiosity and 
interest in reading the whole proposal. This creates 
support for retaining the proposal to Step 2. 
	 The following aspects must be addressed: novelty, 

importance and credibility the PI to achieve 
substantial results.

	 The description of methodology in part B1 must 
substantiate the positive opinion of the evaluators 
on the feasibility of the project. The detailed 
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description of the methodology is the core 
information in Part B2.

	 Overselling and too much hype can severely 
damage even an otherwise great proposal.

	 Use appropriate graphics for an easier 
understanding of the proposal core points.

The CV and track record should describe the 
professional path towards submitted ERC 
proposal and it must provide information that 
makes the PI credible for carrying out the proposed 
research. 

Myth #3: 
	
	 The extended synopsis should describe my 

research in general terms, while the part B2 
should describe the project proposal in full detail 
and specific terms. Because B1 is evaluated by 
“general” reviewers, in comparison to the “experts” 
that will evaluate Part B2.

	 Part B1 is evaluated by experts from your scientific 
field as well as by generalists with a broader 
research background. The etended synopsis should 
therefore appeal to both types of evaluators.
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Myth #4: 
	
	 Without a publication in Nature or Science, or 

without very high h-index, there is no point in 
applying for the ERC grant.

	 Not all grantees have a publication in Nature or 
Science. In 2021 ERC joined the DORA (Declaration 
on Research Assessment) and impact factor or 
h-index is no more relevant bibliometric indicator 
for evaluators. 

	 For StG it is crucial to provide the proof of 
independence.

	 For CoG it is crucial to demonstrate in addition 
the existence of the seed of the original scientific 
school led by the PI (leadership of the group, 
laboratory, etc.).

ERCs are the best grants ever: 
low administration, high visibility, 
scientific freedom; go for it!

Matyáš Fendrych (ERC StG, CoG)
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WHAT is the fundamental and timely problem to 
be investigated? Show that you are an expert in the 
given field. It should be appealing to experts as well 
as non-experts in the particular problem.

WHY is this problem important and the proposed 
work worth funding? Explain what is the state of the 
art in the field, while highlighting the gaps that you 
are addressing. Explain the specific and broader 
impact of your solution. Avoid vagueness and 
interpretative phraseology. 

HOW can the problem be approached so that 
substantial progress towards the goals can be 
expected? Admit the challenges and describe 
the way of addressing them. In ERC, there are no 
requirements about reaching any quantitative goals 
such as number of publications etc.

WHO is the PI? Why is he/she in the best position 
to solve the problem? This question needs to 
be answered (without self-evaluation wording) 
primarily in the Extended Synopsis.

Questions to be answered

14
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Preparation 
of the 
Proposal – 
Part B2
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Part B2

	 Give a thorough and detailed description of the 
research objectives, methodology and resources, 
that further develops the information given in B1.

	 Elaborate specifically on the project 
implementation and on possible obstacles that 
have to be handled.

	 The work plan must be clear (well-structured with 
sub-tasks associated with particular members of 
the team). The size of the proposed team should 
be adequate to the research plan. 

What are the evaluators looking for?

	 Vision, ambitious goals with appropriately described 
challenges and uncertainties.

	 Originality!
	 Not all goals need to be achieved. However, it must 

be clear that at any case the work will lead to 
a very substantial progress. 

	 Methodology cannot be based on the application 
of standard approaches.
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Questions that the evaluators 
must answer

The ground-breaking nature and potential 
impact of the research project 

	 To what extent does the proposed research 
address important challenges? 

	 To what extent are the objectives ambitious and 
beyond the state of the art?

Scientific Approach
	 To what extent is the outlined scientific approach 

feasible bearing in mind the ground-breaking 
nature and ambition of the proposed research?

	 To what extent are the proposed research 
methodology and working arrangements 
appropriate to achieve the goals of the project?

	 To what extent are the proposed timescales, 
resources, and PI commitment adequate and 
properly justified?

Intellectual capacity and creativity
	 To what extent has the PI demonstrated the ability 

to conduct ground-breaking research?
	 To what extent does the PI provide evidence of 

creative and original thinking?
	 To what extent does the PI have the required 

scientific expertise and capacity to successfully 
execute the project?
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Frequent comments  
of the evaluators 

	 The project framework is either too narrow or, on 
the contrary, it is a loose connection of several 
subprojects without a clear leading idea.

	 It is just a continuation of ongoing research.
	 It is a collaborative project where the leading role 

of the PI is not sufficiently explained.
	 The work plan is not clear or it is insufficiently 

described.
	 There is an inadequate description of challenges 

that can arise during the work of the project.
	 The PI has an insufficient track record, which 

doesn’t substantiate the credibility for carrying out 
the project successfully.

	 The PI didn’t show enough independence on the 
PhD. supervisor and/or the previous work within the 
groups led by others.

Writing a successful proposal is 
simple :) You just clearly and concisely 
describe the „What, Why, and How“  
so that everyone becomes enthusiastic 
about your project already after 
reading the abstract. Good luck!

Libor Barto (ERC CoG, SyG)
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Part A 
– Step by
Step
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This is the PIC number, 
once you fill it in, some of 
data are automatically 
written into the form.

Specify your role in the 
project, probably PI-
Principal Investigator.

Provide an acronym, short 
summary, and choose the 
panel to which you want 
to submit your proposal. 
Then click on „Save and 
go to next step“. You can 
return to this information 
later on and edit it further.1.

Go to Funding & Tender portal.
Search for ERC open call. 

https://ec.europa.eu/info/funding-tenders/opportunities/portal/screen/home
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You are now in the „Participants“ section. 
Click on “Add contact +” button to add 
additional people to the proposal in 
different roles. 

Depending on the role you choose, the 
person will have full or limited access to 
your project proposal. 

Please, do not forget to give access to 
your application to the ERC University 
Consultant (role „Coordinator Contact“).

2.

3.
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You are now in the section „Proposal forms“. By clicking on 
„Edit forms“ you can edit Part A, which we will introduce 
you below.

Click here to download part B templates (B1, B2, HI 
support letter).

You can find more information 
about F&T portal in Online Manul.

Once you click on „Submit“, even if 
you are not finished with the project 
proposal, you can always come back 
and edit the proposal as many times 
as you wish up untill the deadline.4.
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You are now in Part A, you can get here by clicking on „Edit 
forms“ (previous step). 

Whenever you leave the form, make sure to save it.

5.
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You can also edit the primary panel to which your research 
belongs. If appropriate, you can also fill in the secondary 
review panel.

You can edit the acronym here.

6.
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It is up to you whether you want to write a contact for the 
rectorate or the research support dpt. of your faculty here. 
You can assign more people to the role of contact persons 
in a project.

7.

8.
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10.

The budget is in an electronic form that will fill in the 
required indirect costs of the project based on the direct 
cost input amounts. It is important to fill in the required EU 
contribution, which is not automatically filled by the system. 
Further information on the budget can be found below.

Once you answer „YES“ to any of these questions, it is 
necessary to duly justify this in the project proposal. Indicate 
which page contains the justification, or attach appropriate 
authorisations or permission to the project proposal. 

9.
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Also, you must complete the Ethics Self-Assessment, in 
which you explain ethics in relation to the objectives of 
the research activities, the methodology and the potential 
impacts of these activities, as well as compliance with 
ethical principles and the corresponding legislation. 
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12.

You are at the end of Part A. If you are not sure whether you 
have completed everything correctly, click on „Show Error“. 
Do not forget to save the modified data again.
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13.

This is  a Host Institution Letter of support (HIL), which you 
downloaded as one of the B Part documents. The HIL should 
be signed by the rector, please contact the team of the 
European Center or Research Support Office at your faculty. 

After signing the document, we will send it back to you and it 
has to be uploaded to the system with other annexes.
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Finance



31

Budget breakdown

A.	Direct personnel costs
B.	Subcontracting costs
C.	Purchase costs
D.	Internally invoiced goods and services
E.	Indirect costs 

A.  Direct personnel costs

	 For the correct budgeting, you need to know 
your gross monthly salary, including personal 
supplement without remuneration from other 
projects.

	 For an idea of the basic salary (without personal 
supplement) you can apply for, it is possible to 

Myth #5: 
	
	 The ERC budget affects the result of the 

evaluation.

	 The budget is not an evaluation criterion. A possible 
reduction of the budget is discussed only after 
suggesting the proposal for funding.



32

look into the CU salary regulation, which sets the 
maximum salary threshold for each category.

	 You should bear in mind that you are setting a 5–7 
years outlook – reflect inflation, career progression 
and exchange rate movements and plan adequate 
financial reserves.

	 In connection with the lump sum AdG, you will  
have to provide more detail on certain aspects.  
For example, personnel costs will have to be 
specified in person-months per staff category.

B.  Subcontracting costs

	 Do not specify the subcontractor‘s name in the 
budget, because a proper selection process 
(selection based on the best value for money 
quality) has to be done first. Describe only what the 
work will be and why the subcontractor must carry 
it out and not the host institution.

C.  Purchase costs 

	 Purchase costs are divided into:
	   Travel and subsistence
	   Equipment (including major equipment)

https://cuni.cz/UKEN-729.html
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	   Consumables (including field work and animal 
    costs)

	   Publications and dissemination (including Open 
    Access fees)

	   Other additional direct costs (including CFS fee)

	 Estimate the travel costs realistically and do not 
forget to include per diems in the calculation.

	 In connection with the lump sum AdG, you will 
have to provide more detail on certain aspects. 
For example, equipment costs will have to include 
information on the depreciation rules that have 
been applied.  

	 In case the total amount of your grant exceeds  
€ 430,000, your project must be first-level audited 
(CFS). The audit fee can be included in other direct 
costs (up to € 10,000). CFS is not applicable in lump 
sum AdG.

D.  Internally invoiced 
    goods and services

	 Typically, chemicals and other self-made 
consumables or costs for a kennel for experimental 
animals.
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E.  Indirect costs

	 Indirect costs are fixed as a flat rate: 25% of direct 
costs (sum of the categories A and C).

	 For more information see Budgeting 
recommendations from Technology Centre Prague 
(only in Czech). You can contact the European 
Centre team at any time, we will help you with the 
appropriate budgeting.

It‘s crucial to remember that ERC 
proposals aim at two distinct 
audiences. Your first audience is a 
virtual someone with limited knowledge 
about your topic who will read the 

condensed version of your proposal. Your second 
audience comprises unknown individuals who, 
between them, may know your topic better than 
you; these people will read the detailed version. 
The interview is the most challenging aspect of the 
competition, as both audiences come together, 
you have no time to think about which question is 
coming from which audience, and every single word 
matters.

Anežka Kuzmičová (ERC StG)

https://www.horizontevropa.cz/cs/publikace/yiifpublications/15/doporuceni-pro-sestaveni-rozpoctu-pro-zadatele...
https://www.horizontevropa.cz/cs/publikace/yiifpublications/15/doporuceni-pro-sestaveni-rozpoctu-pro-zadatele...
https://ec.cuni.cz/ECEN-22.html
https://ec.cuni.cz/ECEN-22.html
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Contact:
European centre, Ovocný trh 560/5

116 36 Praha 1

More information: ec.cuni.cz

Want to get news about the latest research calls?
Send an email to ec@cuni.cz

Disclaimer: The information contained in this document is for informational 
purposes only and does not constitute binding legislative interpretation. CU 

shall not be liable for the consequences of reliance on this information or for any 
damages that may result from its use.

European Centre, October 2023

http://ec.cuni.cz
mailto:ec%40cuni.cz?subject=

